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 Goal

 Follow the development a technical proposal

 Look at the steps for writing a proposal and study 

how the language changes through the process

 The process is designed to keep control of a 

large collaborative writing task

 200 page RFP = 600 page proposal

 0ver 40 people involved

 Gap

 Why does the language change, and what 

purpose does it serve at each step? 



Outline

 Describe what a Request for Proposal is

 Explain details of writing a technical 

proposal and how the language changes 

at each step

 Give an example of the change



Request for Proposal

 A Request for Proposal (RFP) is a 

collection of requirements the customer 

is looking for

 For the Department of Defense (DOD) an 

RFP follows a very specific structure

 The RFP and proposal used for this study 

were for an Air Force F-16 Bomb Rack



 B: Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs

 C: Description/Specs/Work Statement

 D: Packaging and Marking

 E: Inspection and Acceptance

 F: Deliveries or Performance

 G: Contract Administration Data

 H: Special Contract Requirements

 I:  Contract Clauses

 J: List of Attachments

 K: Representation, Certification and Other Statements of Offerors

 L: Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Offerors

 M: Evaluation Factors For Award

 Statement of Objectives (SOO):  Describes what 
the contractor needs to do to execute the contract.

 Systems Requirements Document (SRD):  
Describes what the system to be designed has to 
do.

RFP Sections
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Module Specifications

 RFP is scanned for the words “Shall” and “Will”

 The Shall statements are put onto the Module 

Specifications (Mod Spec)

 Mod Spec has sections to prompt the author

 The language at this point is very open and at a 

high level

 The goal is to get the author’s basic ideas down on 

paper



Storyboard Form

 The language from the Mod Spec is 

copied to the Storyboard form

 Start writing into complete sentences and 

rough paragraphs

 Preliminary graphics are added

 Storyboard forms are arranged on easels 

around the proposal room

 Full proposal begins to appear



Pink Team Review

 Storyboard text is taken from the separate forms and put 
into one document, the Annotated Mockup (AMU) 

 Focus is on subject matter and audience

 Language is still preliminary
 Acceptable and expected, since the company does not want to 

invest in a document that does not answer the RFP

 Looking for at four questions
 Is the proposal compliant?

 Is the proposal responsive?

 Does the proposal sell throughout?

 Does the proposal communicate?



Writing continues

 Text is written out in detail

 Graphics are formalized and added to the 

text

 Strive to have the text and graphics come 

together

 Document needs to be pleasing to the eye



Red Team Review

 Most critical review

 Same questions as the Pink Team, but in 

greater detail

 Want the language to be as close to final 

as possible

 Comments must be helpful and non-

personal



Upper Management Review

 Upper managers review the proposal from 

a big picture point of view

 Strength:  Brings a perspective that may not 

have been considered

 How is the company being represented?

 Weakness:  Misuse of authority

 Does not have in-depth knowledge, but assumes 

so and wants to see their ideas incorporated



Final writing and Release

 Comments from the Red Team and Upper 
Management reviews are incorporated

 Document takes the final shape

 Different volumes are put together

 Delivery to the customer



 Mod Spec

Customer needs long term contractor support 

of the bomb rack.  Raytheon has to prove 

they can set up and run a long term support. 

Raytheon must demonstrate we can provide 

the maintenance data,….. Raytheon needs to 

prove they can function as a repair depot.



 Storyboard Form going into Pink Team Review

… Raytheon will establish a team of people with a 

background on system support, who already have the 

tools in place to provide documentation and 

tracking… Raytheon will use established repair 

procedures to provide a depot level service for the Air 

Force.  The repair facility is used for depot 

maintenance for current bomb racks and launchers 

such as the LAU-7 and BRU-33, as well as 

electronics assemblies for the F-18.  Having the 

technical, support and repair facilities at one location 

expedites parts and provides data for logistics and 

engineering.



 Final
Raytheon can provide a long term, low risk solution to contractor 
support….  Raytheon staff will support the bomb rack and apply 
skills similar to those used to support F/A-18 bomb racks and 
missile launchers, weapons data links, weather radar and many 
other programs….  

Raytheon has the full capability to provide all bomb rack 
manufacturing and repair services.  We have built and repaired 
thousands of bomb racks and missile launchers and have 
established repair procedures to provide complete USAF depot 
level service.  The depot repair facility is at the same location as 
the support personnel and engineering.  If a failed bomb rack is 
brought in for investigation, logistics, manufacturing and 
engineering can collaborate to diagnose and report the problem.  
This ability to bring together the engineer who designed the 
product, the logistician who provides support, and the person 
who built the item is unique and an extremely valuable resource 
in providing comprehensive bomb rack support.



Conclusion

 The language changes for several reasons

 The author learns more as s/he writes and the 
reviews take place

 The reviews can redirect the effort

 Don’t want to write too far ahead in the wrong 
direction
 Cannot afford to waste time

 The proposal must tell a story
 Show, don’t tell

 The team tries to have the entire document 
sound as if it were written by one person


